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The St. Michael's Church Historic District consists of eight buildings (six 
of which are at least fifty years old) a cemetery, and the remains of an asphalt 
playground. The district is an irregular rectangle, set behind the Mississippi 
River levee. The boundaries encompass the eight buildings and other features, 
along with the open spaces which form their setting. The boundaries were drawn 
so as to exclude modern tract houses to the north and unassociated buildings to 
the south. The large open field to the east and the open land flanking the cemetery 
driveway, were included because they preserve the rural character of the district.

1} The Church (ca. 1875) The church is a cruciform basilica with a five- 
bay, aisled nave, and a massive altar set in a great niche whose back wall is 
cut through with a colonnade screen. The church is entered through a vestibule 
set in the base in a single central tower. In the ornate nave, multishaft 
columns rise to foliated capitals which support sets of Romanesque double 
arches. The exposed truss roof features King posts and foliated hanging pendants.

The building is constructed of brick laid up in common bond.

The exterior features the verticality, pinnacles, buttresses, and multiple 
arches of the Gothic style. Yet the numerous semicircular arches and blind 
arcading are Romanesque. Despite the mixture of styles, the blend is entirely 
harmonious and elegant.

At one time there was an octagonal spire; however, it was blown down in 
hurricane.

the 1965

2) The Rectory (ca. 1875) The five-bay, two and one-half story, central 
hall plan rectory has full galleries front and rear and common bond brick construc­ 
tion. The side balconies were added later, probably around the turn,of the century 
Although the building is essentially Greek Revival, most of the detailing reflects 
the Renaissance Revival taste. The only recent alteration has been the construc­ 
tion of a raised walkway which runs from the back gallery to the small school 
building to the rear.

3) Small School Building The small school building is apparently old but 
has been refurbished inside and re-siddd on the outside. It has a gallery in 
the rear and old glass in the windows,which along with the structure, suggests 
a mid to late 19th century date for the building.

4) Large School Building (ca. 1900) The large school building has a "U"
shaped plan with a courtyard in the rear. It is a frame, turn-of-the-century
structure whose only distinguishing feature is its simple Doric portico.

5) The Cottages (Mid to late 19th century) Both cottages are small, frame 
Acadian style buildings with front galleries and pitched roofs. The one near the 
levee has been re-sided and is probably newer than the one in the rear, which is 
in almost original condition.
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The St. Michael's Church Historic District contains a number of examples 
of local building types which collectively have an impressive presence along the 
River Road. More important, however, are the buildings themselves as individual 
works of architecture. .. , .

The church is a large and handsome Victorian Church. It stands as a harmo­ 
nious example of the grandiose blend of Romanesque and Gothic which typified the 
larger Roman Catholic churches in the later 19th century.

The rectory is a large and handsome example of a late Greek Revival residence, 
showing the Greek Revival just at the period when the first hesitant touches of the 
Renaissance Revival began to be applied. Finally, the Welham tomb, in the cemetery, 
is a fine example of a castiron tomb, an unusual type of tomb in Louisiana.

The first St. Michael's Church was built in 1809 about a mile from the 
present one. In the mid-1820's the church began to acquire the land which makes 
up the present district, and in 1827, the present cemetery was begun. In 1831, 
collection of funds to build a new church was started, and by 1833 the building' h 
which was later altered to produce the present church building was completed. The 
building cost $19,445 and was built under the pastorate of Father Charles de la 
Croix, who directed the project. In the 1870's the church was enlarged and it 
basically attained its present appearance at this time. Two sacristl-es were 
added, along with the Lourdes Grotto to the rear of the church. In addition, 
a steeple was added, but it was blown down in 1965 by Hurricane Betsy.

The adjacent rectory was constructed in 1875. The cottage next to the 
church, which dates from the middle to late nineteenth century, was until 1975 
the home of the nuns who taught at St. Joseph's and St. Michael's schools, both 
of which are also a part of the district. The small school building is the old 
St. Joseph's School for Negroes, which originally occupied a different site. The 
school began in 1867 and operated until the coming of integration to the parish in 
the late 1960's. The building, which dates from the middle to late nineteenth 
century, was moved to the church grounds in 1932 and continued to function as 
a Negro Catholic school. It may be the same building in which the school was 
inaugurated in 1867.

The large school building is the old St. Michael's School for white chil­ 
dren, which operated from 1940 to about 1966. From 1966 to 1971 it was an 
integrated Catholic sotiool. The cottage behind the church, which dates from the 
middle to later nineteenth century, is the old kitchen of St. Joseph's School.



Interview with Myrtle Ann Chauvin , secretary of St. Michael's Church, 20 June
1979. 

Meiluta, Rev. George J., "St. Michael Parish Church History: 1722-1974,"
Typescript located in St. Michael's Church, Convent
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6) The Shed (early 20th century) The shed is a greatly enlarged lean- 
to type roof, frame building with clapboard siding.

7) The Cemetery Consisting mainly of fayrly ordinary above-ground tombs, the 
cemetery is noteworthy for three high style Renaissance Revival tombs near the 
entrance. The Welham tomb is particularly significant with its castiron vermi- 
culated quoins and arches.

The large metal-sided school building (ca. 1950) is a major intrusion but 
there was no way to draw the boundaries so as to exclude it. The only positive 
aspect of the building is that it cannot be seen from the River Road which is the 
most architecturally significant view of the district.
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